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Kixmjller's Store is a block long structure of four stores, measuring 140x108x.|35feet. The two story buildjng has 12 inch thick brick walls and a fiist floor store
front of wood painted white with cast iron supports. The corner unit (at the
intersection of Carlisle and Indianapolis Streets) has a center entrance with
rectangular transom, sidelights, and two flanking d'isplay windows. The second
story red brick facade is punctuated by three windows (two over two lights) with
cast iron elliptical-arched caps. The first section is the dry goods portion
of the establishment.

Although documentation is lacking, the first and second units were constructed
about 1866. The second unit, known as the shoe room, is recessed from the dry
goods section and has a double recessed entrance with a center projecting display
window. The three second level windows of this portion have horizontal stone
caps.

The third and fourth sect'ions (the grocery and office) were added to the original
structure about .|878. 

The third and fourth parts are flush with the shoe store
facade and have two recessed entrances which are separated by fjve windows.
There are also singie windows which are to the outside of the entrances. Six
segmenta'l-arched windows without caps extend across the upper story.

The side along Indianapo'l'is Street (northwest side) has five square headed win-
dows with two over two lights at the second story. This first floor has a door
toward the rear of the building with a rectangular transom and sidelights. To
one side of the entrance is a tvro over two windqw; to the other side are three
small diamond-shaped windows. The front of the structure origina'lly had an
overhang supported by iron posts to which horses were hitched;,the overhang has
been remo_ved sometime in the twentjeth century.

The dry goods section is in jts orig'ina1 condjtion except for a lowered ceil'ing and
two ext6rior doors which were remodeled in .|968. 

The original counters and show-
cases are still'in use. Original furniture includesthe office desk; file cabinet;
cone twine holders; safe; and rjbbon, spoolo umbrella, hat and candy cases. The

shoe room has remained unchanged and contains original ladders on rollers, shoe bench
and shoe stool. A room (the brick room) behind the shoe room is used for storage
and candling eggs. The grocery sectjon has had its cei'ling lowered. A concrete
floor and new front door were added in i965. A large hand-pu1l elevator is in one

corner of this section. The final portion is also largely in its origina'l condition
for use as an office. The second story is largely unused. Above the dry goods

area is a wool rug rack mounted on the wall. 0rigina'l1y the upper level was used
by tr.ave'ling salesmen to store their goods while visiting in the town.
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Kixmiiler's Store has been a factor in the commercial life of the Town of Freeland-
ville for about .|30 years. Although existing under different names, a store has
been operated by the same family at the same location s'ince 1846. The first struc-
ture on the site was a weather-boarded log building erected in 1846 by John Ritter-
skamp. Rjtterskamp was born jn lBlg in Prussia and migrated to America, eventually
settling on a farm in the area that became Freelandville.

The year .|866 
was eventful for the small commun'ity. In that year Ritterskamp 1a'id

out the original lots of the town, usino"Lhe corner of his store as the beginninc
point. He also constructed a brick build"ing to rep'lace the log store which had
burned. Ritterskamp's store served the tlwn and surround'ing farming commun'ity.
The venture was of sufficjent success to allow expansion of the structure about
l87B when a local bnicklayer added two sections.

Ritterskamp also built a grist mjll in partnership with a Mr. Baker about .|864.

Themjllevolvedintothe'Freelandvi1leMi11ingC.ornpany'.j!':,'||....!

Among Ritterskarnp's four children was a daughtero Louise born in .|857; 
she married

Simon Henry K'ixmiller (born 1860). Kixmiller had worked in the store as a boy and
in .1890 

became its 1ega1 owner along with his wife. He also became president of the
Freelandville Milling Company and was director of the People Savings and Loan
Building Association. ftxmiller's son was t^Jilliam Rhinehard (born .l892) 

who jn-
herited-the store in 1943 after having worked there since 1908. l,llilliam R. K'ix-
miller still owns and operates the establishment.

Kixmiller's Store is significant as an examp'le of n'ineteenth century commercial
architecture which suggests some italianate influence in the eiliptical and segmenta'l
arched windows on the second story. In contrast to the usual fate suffered by nine-
teenth century commercial structures, Kixmiller's Store is better preserved on the
interior than the exterior. The original furnishings have survived because owner-
ship of the structure has remained in the same family since its beginnings.
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